UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-2-2016

Elliott v. Young Appellant's Brief Dckt. 44068

Statement of the Case
Course of the Proceedings
Statement of the Facts
Issues Presented on Appeal
Argument
Plaintiff Proffered Sufficient Evidence to Oppose
Plaintiff Offered Evidence to Prove Lack of Probable Cause

Plaintiff Offered Evidence to Prove Defendant Knew Plaintiff was not on His Property and Acted with Malice
The Trial Court's Finding Is Not Supported By Evidence
The Trial Court Erred In Failing to Consider That Defendant's Affidavit Refuted His Previous Testimony
The Trial Court Failed to Consider Evidence of Relationship between Defendant and Prosecutor
Summary

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Allen v. Moyle, 84 Idaho 18, 24, 367 P.2d 579, 583 (1961)

Badell v. Beeks, 115 Idaho 101,102, 765 P.2d 126, 128 (1988)

Burgess V. Salmon River Canal Co., Ltd., 127 Idaho 565, 574, 903 P.2d 730, 739 (1995)

Butler v. Elle et al, 281 F.3d 1014 (9th Cir. 2001)

Brinegar v. United States, 338 U.S. 160, 175, 69 S.Ct. 1302, 93 L.Ed. 1879 (1949)

Clair v. Clair, 281 P.3d 115, 153 Idaho 278 (Idaho 2012)

Clark v. Alloway, 67 Idaho 32, 170 P.2d 425 (1946);

Clark v. Spokesman-Review, 163 P.3d 216, 219, 144 Idaho 427, 430 (Idaho 2007)

Clark v. Spokesman-Review, 163 P.3d 216, 144 Idaho 427 (Idaho 2007)

Clark v. Spokesman Review, 144 Idaho 427, 163 P.3d 216 (Idaho 2007)

Country Cove Dev., Inc. v. May, 143 Idaho 595, 599, 150 P.3d 288, 292 (2006)

Curlee v. Kootenai Cnty. Fire and Rescue, 148 Idaho 391, 394, 224 P.3d 458, 461 (2008)

Estate of Becker v. Callahan, 140 Idaho 522, 527, 96 P.3d 623, 628 (2004)

Farm Credit Bank of Spokane v. Stevenson, 125 Idaho 270, 272, 869 P.2d 1365, 1368 (1994)

Fuller v. Dave Callister, 252 P.3d 1266, 1269, 150 Idaho 848, 851 (Idaho 2011)

Gardner v. Hollifield, 97 Idaho 607, at 610, 549 P.2d 266, at 269 (Idaho 1976)

Harte-Hanks Communications, Inc. v. Connaughton, 491 U.S. 657, 668, 109 S. Ct. 2997 (1989)

Herbert v. Lando, 441 U.S. 153, 160 (1979)

Howard v. Felton, 85 Idaho 286, 290, 379 P.2d 414, 416 (1963)

Howard, 85 Idaho 286, 291, 379.2d 414, 417

Huber v. Lightforce USA, Inc., 41887 (Idaho December 15, 2015)

Humberger v. Humberger, 995 P.2d 809, 811, 134 Idaho 39, 41 (Idaho 2000)

I.R.E. 103; I.R.C.P. 61(a)

Jensen v. Jensen 128 Idaho 600, 604, 917 P.2d 757, 761 (1996)

Manganiello v. City of New York, 612 F.3d 149 (2d Cir. 2010)

McCann v. McCann, 275 P.3d 824 (Idaho 2012)

Mink v. Knox, 613 F.3d 995, 1003 (10th Cir.2010) People vs. Hogan, CA, 55 OG (1597)

Myers v. City of Pocatello, 98 Idaho 168, 559 P.2d 1136 1977)

Perception Const. Management, Inc. v. Bell, 254 P.3d 1246, 1249, 1250 151 Idaho 250 (Idaho 2011)

Post Falls Trailer Park, 131 Idaho at 636, 962 P.2d at 1020

Revised Penal code, Book II, 15th ed., p. 951

Rincover v. State, 128 Idaho 653, 917 P.2d 1293 (1996)

Robinson v. White, 90 Idaho 548, 414 P.2d 666 (1966);

Seelig v. Harvard Coop. Soc'y., 246 N.E.2d 642, 646 (Mass. 1969)

Shannahan v. Gigray, 131 Idaho 664, 667, 962 P.2d 1048, 1051 (1998)

Smith v. Meridian Joint School District No. 2, 128 Idaho 714, 718, 918 P.2d 583, 587 (1996).

State v. Houser, 41540 (unpublished) (Idaho App. 2014)

State v. Perry, 139 Idaho 520, 521, 81 P.3d 1230, 1231 (2003)

State v. Johnson, 148 Idaho 664, 671, 227 P.3d 918, 925 (2010)

State v. Raudebaugh, 124 Idaho 758, 764, 864 P.2d 596, 602 (1993)

State v. Shutz, 143 Idaho 200, 202, 141 P.3d 1069, 1071 (2006)

State v. Stevens, 146 Idaho 139, 143, 191 P.3d 217, 221 (2008)

Steele v. Spokesman Review, 138 Idaho 249, 251, 61 P.3d 606, 608 (2002)

Taylor v. McNichols, 243 P.3d 642, 648, 149 Idaho 826, 832 (Idaho 2010)

Tavoulareas v. Piro, 260 U.S. App.D.C. U.S. App.D.C.9, 66, 817 F. 2d 762, 789 (en banc), cert. denied, 484 U.S. 870 (1987)

Thomson v. Idaho Insurance Agency, Inc., 126 Idaho 527, 530, 887 P.2d 1034, 1037

Trotter v. Bank of N.Y. Mellon, 152 Idaho 842, 845-46, 275 P.3d 857, 860-61 (2012)

T.W. Electrical Service, Inc. v. Pacific Electrical Contractors Ass'n, 809 F. 2d 626 (9th Cir. 1987).

United States v. Limone IV, 497 F.Supp.2d at 220 (D.Mass.2007)

Vavold v. State, 148 Idaho 44, 45, 218 P.3d 388, 389 (2009)

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

1. Summary judgment shall be rendered when "the pleadings, depositions and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving part is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. "I.R.C.P. 56(c). On appeal the Appellate Court liberally construes the entire record in favor of the nonmoving party and draws all reasonable inferences and conclusion in that party's favor. *Clark v. Spokesman-Review*, 163 P.3d 216,219, 144 Idaho 427, 430 (Idaho 2007) *Steele v. Spokesman Review*, 138 Idaho 249, 251, 61 P.3d 606, 608 (2002). If the evidence reveals no disputed issues of material fact, summary judgment is proper. Id.

2. When a claim or part of a claim must be proved by clear and convincing evidence, generally on a motion for summary judgment the Idaho Appellate Courts do not consider whether a party has produced clear and convincing evidence, but only "whether the evidence is sufficient to create a triable issue of fact." *Country Cove Dev., Inc. v. May*, 143 Idaho 595, 599, 150 P.3d 288, 292 (2006).

3. Idaho appellate courts review a grant of summary judgment de novo. *Clark v. Spokesman-Review*, 163 P.3d 216, 144 Idaho 427 (Idaho 2007), *Post Falls Trailer Park*, 131 Idaho at 636, 962 P.2d at 1020." *Id* at 222 and 433.

4. Regarding the issue of want of probable cause, *Allen v. Moyle*, 84 Idaho 18, 24-25, 367 P .2d 579 (1961). It states that <u>*The advice of counsel relied upon must come from an independent, disinterested attorney. Howard*, 85 Idaho 286, 291, 379) .2d 414, 417.</u>

5. A plaintiff is entitled to prove the defendant's state of mind through circumstantial evidence, *see Herbert v. Lando*, 441 U.S. 153, 160 (1979); *Tavoulareas v. Piro*, 260 U.S. App.D.C. U.S. App.D.C.9, 66, 817 F. 2d 762, 789 (en banc), cert. denied, 484 U.S. 870 (1987), and it cannot be said that evidence concerning motive or care never bears any relation to the actual malice inquiry." *Harte-Hanks Communications, Inc. v. Connaughton*, 491 U.S. 657, 668, 109 S. Ct. 2997 (1989); *Clark v. Spokesman Review*, 144 Idaho 427, 163 P.3d 216 (Idaho 2007): *Gardner v. Hollifield*, 97 Idaho 607, at 610, 549 P.2d 266, at 269 (Idaho 1976).

6. The standard of review of a trial court's decision of issues involving the introduction of evidence, is under an abuse of discretion [281 P.3d 120] standard. *Clair v. Clair*, 281 P.3d 115, 153 Idaho 278 (Idaho 2012); *State v. Perry*, 139 Idaho 520, 521, 81 P.3d 1230, 1231 (2003). The trial court has broad discretion to admit or exclude evidence. Id. at 521-22, 81 P.3d at 1231-32. "Error may not be predicated upon a ruling which admits or excludes evidence unless the ruling is a manifest abuse of the trial court's discretion and a substantial right of the

party is affected." Burgess V. Salmon River Canal Co., Ltd., 127 Idaho 565, 574, 903 P.2d 730, 739 (1995).

7. The question of whether evidence is relevant is reviewed de novo, while the decision to admit relevant evidence is reviewed for an abuse of discretion. [1] <u>State v. Shutz</u>, 143 Idaho 200, 202, 141 p.3d 1069, 1071 (2006). A district court's improper exclusion of evidence will be overturned on appeal if it affects a party's substantial right. *Clair v. Clair*, 281 P.3d 115, 153 Idaho 278 (Idaho 2012); *Perception Const. Management, Inc. v. Bell*, 254 P.3d 1246, 1249, 1250 151 Idaho 250 (Idaho 2011); I.R.E. 103; I.R.C.P. 61(a); *Burgess v. Salmon River Canal Co., Ltd.*, 127 Idaho 565, 574, 903 P.2d 730, 739 (1995).

8. Evidence that is relevant to a material and disputed issue concerning the crime charged is generally admissible. State v. Stevens, 146 Idaho 139, 143, 191 P.3d 217, 221 (2008). Evidence is relevant if it has "any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence." I.R. E. 401: see also *Stevens*, 146 Idaho at 143, 191 P.3d at 221. Whether a fact is of consequence or material is determined by its relationship to the legal theories presented by the parties. *State v. Johnson*, 148 Idaho 664, 671, 227 P.3d 918, 925 (2910). We review questions of relevance de novo. *State v. Raudebaugh*, 124 Idaho 758, 764, 864 P.2d 596, 602 (1993); *State v. Houser*, 41540 (unpublished) (Idaho App. 2014).

9. Appeals from an order of summary judgment are reviewed de novo, and on appeal the standard of review is the same as the standard used by the trial court in ruling on a motion for summary judgment. Summary judgment is appropriate if the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issues as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. I.R. C. P. 56(c). Under this standard, disputed facts are construed in favor of the non-moving party, and all reasonable inferences that can be drawn from the record are drawn in favor of the non-moving party. Where the evidence reveals no disputed issues of material fact, then only a question of law remains, over which this Court exercises free review. *Huber v. Lightforce USA, Inc.*, 41887 (Idaho December 15, 2015); *Trotter v. Bank of N.Y. Mellon*, 152 Idaho 842, 845-46, 275 P.3d 857, 860-61 (2012) (footnotes, internal case citation, and internal quotation marks omitted).

10. When reviewing an order for summary judgment, the standard of review for the Appellate Court is the same standard as that used by the district court in ruling on the motion. Summary judgment is appropriate if "the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issues as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." I.R.C.P. 56(c). Disputed facts should be construed in favor of the non-moving party, and all reasonable inferences that can be drawn from the record are to be drawn in favor of the non-moving party. The Appellate Court exercises

free review over questions of law. *Huber v. Lightforce USA, Inc.*, 41887 (Idaho December 15, 2015); *Fuller v. Dave Callister*, 252 P.3d 1266, 1269, 150 Idaho 848, 851 (Idaho 2011); 149 Idaho 609, 613, 238 P3d 209, 213 (2010) (quoting *Vavold v. State*, 148 Idaho 44, 45, 218 P.3d 388, 389 (2009).

11. The standard of review on appeal from an order granting summary judgment is the same standard that is used by the district court in ruling on the summary judgment. Summary judgment is appropriate only when the pleadings, depositions, affidavits and admissions on file show that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. *McCann v. McCann*, 275 P.3d 824 (Idaho 2012).

12. When an Appellate Court reviews an order dismissing an action pursuant to summary judgment, after viewing all facts and inferences from the record in favor of the non-moving party, the Court will ask whether a claim for relief has been stated. The issue is not whether the plaintiff will ultimately prevail, but whether the party is entitled to offer evidence to support the claims. 145 Idaho 670, 672-73, 183 P.3d 758, 760-61 (2008) (internal citations and quotations omitted). In addition, "the Court reviews an appeal from an order of summary judgment de novo, and the Court's standard of review is the same as the standard used by the trial court in ruling on a motion for summary judgment." *Taylor v. McNichols*, 243 P.3d 642, 648, 149 Idaho 826, 832 (Idaho 2010); *Curlee v. Kootenai Cnty. Fire and Rescue*, 148 Idaho 391, 394, 224 P.3d 458, 461 (2008).

13. An Appellate Court will not set aside the trial court's findings of fact unless they are clearly erroneous. As to questions of law, the Court exercises free review. *Humberger v. Humberger*, 995 P.2d 809, 811, 134 Idaho 39, 41 (Idaho 2000); See *Jensen v. Jensen* 128 Idaho 600, 604, 917 P.2d 757, 761 (1996).

14. In ruling on a motion for summary judgment the trial court is to liberally construe the entire record in favor of the nonmoving party and draw all reasonable inferences and conclusions in that party's favor. *Steele v. Spokesman-Review*, 138 Idaho 249, 251, 61 P.3d 606, 608 (2002). *Clark v. Spokesman-Review*, 144 Idaho 427, 163 P.3d 216, (Idaho 2007).

15. A party responding to a summary judgment motion is not required to present evidence on every element of his or her case at that time, but must rather establish a genuine issue of material fact regarding the element or elements challenged by the moving party. Thomson v. Idaho Insurance Agency, Inc., 126 Idaho 527, 530, 887 P.2d 1034, 1037; Farm Credit Bank of Spokane v. Stevenson, 125 Idaho 270, 272, 869 P.2d 1365, 1368 (1994).

16. In <u>Manganiello v. City of New York</u>, 612 F.3d 149 (2d Cir. 2010), the <u>Second</u> <u>Circuit</u> upheld a jury's verdict and judgment (including \$1.426 million in compensatory

damages) against the defendant former detective charged with § 1983 Fourth Amendment malicious prosecution of the plaintiff who was prosecuted for murder but acquitted. The defendant argued that he should have been granted judgment as a matter of law because probable cause existed, or should be presumed to have existed by virtue of a grand jury indictment of the plaintiff for murder. Rejecting the argument, the Second Circuit observed that the presumption of probable cause from a grand jury indictment could be rebutted by evidence that the indictment was procured by fraud, perjury or the suppression of evidence by the police officer. In this case there was ample evidence to support the jury's findings that the defendant engaged in at least one of these kinds of misconduct: the defendant refrained from making inquiries into other possible suspects, ignored evidence that the plaintiff was not guilty, declined to inform the prosecutor of possibly exculpatory evidence, secured an inculpatory statement from a witness by promising not to disclose that witness's known criminal activities and included in some of his own reports statements adverse to the plaintiff that were contradicted by persons with firsthand knowledge of the facts. Furthermore, it was clear that the defendant caused the initiation or continuation of the criminal proceedings against the plaintiff. Finally, there was sufficient evidence of malice in the sense that the defendant acted with "something other than a desire to see the ends of justice served." 612 F.3d at 164.

17. Malice as defined by Idaho Statue 18-101 (4). The words "malice," and "maliciously," import a wish to vex, annoy, or injure another person. For a malicious prosecution action, the standard for proving "malice" is less rigorous than the standard for proving "actual malice". *Malice may be proved by extrinsic evidence such as the defendant bore a grudge against the offended party or there was rivalry or ill-feeling between them.* [from Luis B Reyes, *Revised Penal code, Book II*, 15th ed., p. 951, citing *People vs. Hogan*, CA, 55 OG 1597.]

18. <u>Regarding Probable Cause: The advice of counsel relied upon must come from an</u> <u>independent, disinterested attorney.</u> Howard, 85 Idaho 286, 291, 379) .2d 414, 417.

19. The malice element is usually not difficult for the plaintiff to prove where there is an absence of probable cause, *Seelig v. Harvard Coop. Soc'y.*, 246 N.E.2d 642, 646 (Mass. 1969) (lack of probable cause is a sufficient basis for an inference of malice).and it does not require evidence of subjective ill will. *If the defendant's actions are willful and done purposely, and known to him to be wrong and unlawful, malice is established*. *United States v. Limone IV*, 497 F.Supp.2d at 220 (D.Mass.2007).

20. The standard of review of a trial court's decision of issues involving the introduction of evidence, is under an abuse of discretion [281 P.3d 120] standard. *Clair v. Clair* 281 P.3d 115, 153 Idaho 278 (Idaho 2012); *State v. Perry*, 139 Idaho 520, 521, 81 P.3d 1230, 1231 (2003). The trial court has broad discretion to admit or exclude evidence, Id. at 521-22, 81 P.3d at 1221-32. "Error may not be predicated upon a ruling which admits or excludes evidence unless the ruling is a manifest abuse of the trial court's discretion and a substantial right of the party is affected." *Burgess v. Salmon River Canal Co.*, 127 Idaho 565, 574, 903 P.2d 730, 739 (1995).

21. The question of whether evidence is relevant is reviewed de novo, while the decision to admit relevant evidence is reviewed for an abuse of discretion. [1] *State v. Shutz*, 143 Idaho 200, 202, 141 P.3d 1069, 1071 (2006). A district court's improper exclusion of evidence will be overturned on appeal if it affects a party's substantial right. *Clair v. Clair*, 281 P.3d 115, 153 Idaho 278 (Idaho 2012); *Perception Const. Management, Inc. v. Bell*, 254 P.3d 1246, 1249, 1250 151 Idaho 250 (Idaho 2011); I.R.E. 103; I.R.C.P. 61(a); *Burgess v. Salmon River Canal Co., Lt.*, 127 Idaho 565, 574, 903 P.2d 730, 739 (1995).

22. Evidence that is relevant to a material and disputed issue concerning the crime charged is generally admissible. *State v. Stevens*, 146 Idaho 139, 143, 191 P.3d 217, 221 (2008). Evidence is relevant if it has "any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence." I.R.E. 401; see also *Stevens*, 146 Idaho at 143, 191 P.3d at 221. Whether a fact is of consequence or material is determined by its relationship to the legal theories presented by the parties. *State v. Johnson*, 148 Idaho 664, 671, 227 P.3d 918, 925 (2010). We review questions of relevance de novo. *State v. Raudebaugh*, 124 Idaho 758, 764, 864 P.2d 596, 602 (1993); *State v. Houser*, 41540 (unpublished) (Idaho App. 2014).

23. Appeals from an order of summary judgment are reviewed de novo, and this Court's standard of review is the same as the standard used by the trial court in ruling on a motion for summary judgment. Summary judgment is appropriate if the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. I.R.C.P. 56(c). Under this standard, disputed facts are construed in favor of the non-moving party, and all reasonable inferences that can be drawn from the record are drawn in favor of the non-moving party. Where the evidence reveals no disputed issues of material fact, then only a question of law remains, over which this Court exercises free review. *Huber v. Lightforce USA, Inc.*, 41887 (Idaho December 15, 2015); Trotter v. Bank of N.Y. Mellon, 152 Idaho 842, 845–46, 275 P.3d 857, 860–61 (2012) (footnotes, internal case citations, and internal quotation marks omitted).

24. The standard of review on appeal from an order granting summary judgment is the same standard that is used by the district court in ruling on the summary judgment motion. Summary judgment is appropriate only when the pleadings, depositions, affidavits and admissions on file show that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. McCann v. McCann, 275 P.3d 824 (Idaho 2012).

25. When reviewing an order for summary judgment, the standard of review for the Appellate Court is the same standard as that used by the district court in ruling on the motion. Summary judgment is appropriate if " the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." I.R.C.P. 56(c). Disputed facts should be construed in favor of the non-moving party, and all reasonable inferences that can be

drawn from the record are to be drawn in favor of the non-moving party. The Appellate Court exercises free review over questions of law. *Fuller v. Dave Callister*, 252 P.3d 1266, 1269, 150 Idaho 848, 851 (Idaho 2011); 149 Idaho 609, 613, 238 P.3d 209, 213 (2010) (quoting *Vavold v. State*, 148 Idaho 44, 45, 218 P.3d 388, 389 (2009).

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