# Uldaho Law **Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

10-4-2016

## Elliott v. Young Respondent's Brief Dckt. 44068

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

#### **ARGUMENT**

Issue 1: Whether the District Court was correct in dismissing Candace Elliott's Complaint for Malicious Prosecution on a Motion for Summary Judgment.

As noted in Judge Stephens' Order and Decision:

The elements of a malicious prosecution claim are: "1) that there was a prosecution, 2) that it terminated in favor of plaintiff, 3) that the defendant was the prosecutor, 4) that the defendant was actuated by malice, 5) that there was want of probable cause, and 6) that damages were sustained." *Howard v. Felton, 85 Idaho 286, 290, 379 P.2d 414, 416 (1963)*. In order for the Defendant to succeed in his summary judgment motion, he must show that there is no genuine issue of material fact and that he is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law as to any one of these elements. R p. 493.

Judge Stephens granted Kurt's Motion for Summary Judgment for Candace's failure to provide sufficient evidence on two elements which are required to prove her case. First on element number 3, the District Court found that Kurt was not the prosecutor of the case. The District Court noted that Kurt was a complaining witness but the Prosecuting Attorney independently made the decision and filed his own formal complaint charging Candace with criminal trespass. Second on element number 5, the District Court found that there was probable cause for the criminal complaint to be issued against Candace after full and fair disclosure by Kurt and other witnesses. R p. 493.

Although Candace identified 14 issues in her Appellant Brief at pages 14 and 15, the primary issue raised by her relates to whether there was probable cause with a full and fair disclosure for the issuance of a complaint for trespass against her. Candace states that Kurt said he had pictures of her trespassing and that he saw her trespassing on his property.

Candace then states that at the trial Kurt admitted he did not actually see her located on his property off the roadway and that he did not have any pictures of her actually trespassing.

Fortunately modern technology has provided assistance in reconstructing what Kurt actually said to the investigating Deputy Sheriff John Clements when Kurt was interviewed shortly after the incident occurred. The entire video cam recording is provided in the Clerk's record as an Exhibit. R p. 103. Although there is not a complete written transcription of that interview on the video camera of Deputy Clements, a partial transcription of relevant statements by Kurt and by Deputy Clements was prepared by Royce Lee and submitted as Exhibit A attached to the Affidavit of Royce Lee dated January 29, 2016. R p. 470 – 473. A careful review of those statements provides a clear understanding of what Kurt explained to Deputy Clements. The following information is obtained from the video cam transcription.

- 1. On July 24, 2011, shortly after 1:00 p.m., Kurt became aware that a white car had driven slowly past his house and then turned around and came back towards his house. He saw the passenger, later identified as Candace Elliott, "looking back into mine [Kurt's property] again but I didn't get the camera in time." R p. 472, log 1:27.
- 2. Kurt then went to get a camera, and did not have visual contact with Candace temporarily. R p. 472, log 1:27.
- 3. By the time Kurt returned with a camera and had visual contact with Candace, "she was walking across the street and checking out and taking pictures of all the other horses." Kurt said "I got a picture of her car right there" and pointed to the location of the parked car when he explained this to Deputy Clements. R p. 472, log 1:27. Note that Kurt's explanation indicates that he did not see her personally get out of the car

but that he saw her as a passenger in the car close by his property and then a short time later he saw her walking across the street and taking pictures of the neighbor's horses and he saw and explained to the Deputy where the car was parked on his property after she got out of the car.

- 4. Deputy Clements then left and interviewed the neighbors, Dan Murdock and Brenda Murdock, and then he returned to continue the interview with Kurt. At that time Kurt further explained to Deputy Clements that, "a white car was in that driveway right there", pointing to the location of "right there". R p. 472, log 18:50.
- 5. Kurt further explained that, "she [he]went from right there all the way down and parked right in front of my gate. Isn't that considered on my property?" R p. 472, log 20:02.
- 6. Deputy Clements responded by saying, "She has to be on the property. When she came into the yard to take pictures that's on your property." R p. 472, log 20:12.
- 7. Kurt further explained, "She was right back there [Kurt pointing] and she was right back over here [Kurt pointing] with her camera". R p. 472, log 20:20.
- 8. Deputy Clements then confirmed that he personally "trespassed" Candace from Kurt's property. R p. 472, log 20:49.
- 9. The next part of the interview is done inside Kurt's house while Kurt is showing his pictures to the deputy. Again he says, "I got out here [outside] just as she was pulling away from up there looking in my back yard (before he had a camera). And then I got her (with the camera) over there taking all these pictures here...I got her there." R p. 472, log 21:25. Note that Kurt does not claim that he took a picture earlier than when

she was "over there taking all these pictures", which was after she was standing on the roadway taking pictures of the neighbor's horses. He then explained about another picture, "This is when they were parked here by the front of my place." Referring to another picture, "That's when they was out and he pulled up and then back on the road and changed cameras." Note that Kurt explained that he (Candace's husband and driver) then pulled back on the road, indicating that he had been off the road and therefore on Kurt's property before that moment. Pointing to another picture Kurt said, "That's her walking down and then they [he] pulled up on my grass here [down road by gate] and she walked out and around and she got in the car and there you go." R p. 472, log starting at 21:25.

- 10. Deputy Clements then asked Kurt, "So she definitely was on your end of the property though?" R p. 472, log 28:41. Kurt answered by saying, "She was right here by the fence [Kurt pointing] and she was right there where they got that car parked [Kurt pointing]." R p. 472, log 28:46.
- 11. Kurt then explains his understanding of trespass by saying, "All they have got to do is step one freaking foot on it." R p. 472, log 28:51. Deputy Clements then confirms that understanding by stating, "Yep." R p. 473, log 28:55.
- 12. Deputy Clements also interviewed Klurissa Young, Kurt Young's daughter, who was present during this time. A copy of her statement is not in the court record. Deputy Clements quotes Klurissa as saying "Klurissa said she saw a car with two people in it and a female got out of the car and was on their property taking pictures of the property and of the Murdock's property as well." R p. 109.

- 13. In addition Deputy Clements also interviewed Brenda Murdock and Dan Murdock, who were across the street from Kurt's residence. Brenda was outside cooking on her front step. See their written statements at R p. 456 and 457.
- 14. At the time Kurt stated that he wanted a charge filed against Candace, he had explained to Deputy Clements what he had personally seen about Candace being on his property. He had answered Deputy Clements' questions about what he had seen. He had pointed out to Deputy Clements the specific locations where he saw the car parked where Candace Elliott must have exited the car on his property and where she got back into the car on his property. He had explained to Deputy Clements that the car had pulled off the road and then had pulled back onto the road on one occasion, demonstrating that in fact the car was parked off of the public road, which would have been on Kurt's property. Deputy Clements had twice confirmed to Kurt that this information indicated that Candace had in fact trespassed on Kurt's property.

Kurt filed an Affidavit in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment dated September 22, 2015. R p. 144. Candace argues that Kurt's Affidavit is inconsistent with his testimony at trial. In the Affidavit Kurt explained that the distance between the middle of the road and where he saw the car first parked on his property was about 31 to 31 ½ feet from the middle of the road. R p. 144. At trial Kurt had testified similarly that he thought the car had been parked about 35 feet from the middle of the road. See Judge Stephens' Order and Decision, R p, 492. The prosecutor and Candace's defense attorney had stipulated during the trespass trial that the right-of-way extended 30 feet from the middle of the road. R p. 492. Kurt's testimony in the Affidavit and at trial was more detailed than the RESPONDENT'S REPLY TO APPELLANT'S BRIEF -14

information give on the video cam, but since Deputy Clements saw the location where Kurt was pointing, he knew that same information when he filed his report and submitted it to the prosecutor.

Kurt does not state in the Affidavit that he <u>saw</u> Candace personally get out of the car when it first stopped. Rather, he states, "Candace Elliott got out of the passenger side and walked around the car onto the public road." He had seen her riding in the car passenger side a few moments before and then next saw the car parked with the passenger side closest to his property and Candace walking on the public road. She was in the car and then had to exit where the car was parked on his property, in order to be walking across the public road when he personally saw her again. Kurt's Affidavit is accurate and consistent with his other testimony.

In the Affidavit Kurt also again reaffirmed that "I believed that, and still believe, that she was on my property on July 24, 2011, as compared to being on the public roadway or right-of-way." R p. 147. Kurt also stated that "I believe there was a reasonable basis for me and Deputy Clements to state that she had trespassed on my property." R p. 147.

On the Motion for Summary Judgment the question whether there was probable cause to issue the complaint is a question of law for the Court to determine. *Herrold v. Idaho State School of the Deaf and Blind, 112 Idaho 410, 732 P.2d 379 (Ct. App. 1987).* Judge Stephens indicated in his Decision dated February 5, 2016, that he had personally reviewed the video cam interview by Deputy Clements with Kurt, as well as the written statement of Kurt, and compared that testimony with Kurt's trial testimony. R p. 497. Judge Stephens had all of the information given by Kurt which was available to the prosecuting attorney who later decided RESPONDENT'S REPLY TO APPELLANT'S BRIEF -15

to file the criminal trespass complaint against Candace. Judge Stephens also noted that in another related case in which Candace was a Plaintiff, that he had already reached a conclusion and issued a decision finding that there was in fact probable cause for the issuance of the trespassing complaint against Candace. The Court is entitled to take judicial notice of the record in another legal proceeding at any time. See Idaho Rules of Evidence, Rule 201. Judge Stephens also had the benefit of the record in this case which included the Warranty Deed, testimony of Kurt that he owned the property in question to the middle of the road, the probable cause affidavit of Deputy Clements, and the Affidavit of Kurt clarifying that he did not know Robin Dunn before the trial actually commenced on the case. (See Issue No. 2 hereafter). This indicates that Judge Stephens had the benefit of the "full and fair" disclosure by Kurt and other witnesses on which the prosecuting attorney determined that a criminal complaint should be issued.

Deputy Clements may not have been aware of the legal issue about whether Candace would be guilty of trespass if she was on Kurt's property, but on the public right-of-way. Likewise the prosecuting attorney may not have evaluated that issue before issuing the complaint. The prosecuting attorney continued to press prosecution of the case, through five days of trial and over sixteen months, even though that issue was raised during the trial. Therefore, the prosecuting attorney must have still concluded that there was probable cause to proceed with prosecution of the case in spite of the question about the public right-of-way.

If a complaining witness complains to law enforcement about an alleged crime by another party, and relies on the advice of a private attorney or a prosecuting attorney, the complaining witness still has a complete defense to a complaint for malicious prosecution, RESPONDENT'S REPLY TO APPELLANT'S BRIEF -16

even if the advice of the private attorney or prosecuting attorney is in error. Thomas v. Hinton, 76 Idaho 337, 281 P.2d 1050 (1955); Donaldson v. Miller, 58 Idaho 295, 72 P.2d 853 (1937); and Lowe v. Skaggs Safeway Stores, 49 Idaho 48, 286 P. 616 (1930). Even if Deputy Clements was not aware and did not raise that issue with the prosecuting attorney, and even if the prosecuting attorney was either not aware of that issue or was not correct in its interpretation that Candace would be guilty of trespass if she went on Kurt's property but within the public right-of-way, Kurt still has a complete defense to the claim for malicious prosecution. Kurt reasonably understood and in fact he was correct that he owned the property to the middle of the roadway. See I.C. §55-309. It was reasonable for Kurt to understand that if Candace went on his private property immediately adjacent to the paved highway then she was guilty of a trespass, as in fact he is the owner of that property adjoining the paved highway. Furthermore, the location where Kurt saw the car first parked was actually outside the 30 foot right-of-way. This issue became a question at trial and ultimately resulted in Judge Crowley determining that he could not find beyond a reasonable doubt that Candace Young had been on Kurt Young's property which was not within the public rightof-way.

The final result of this review of all the facts given to Deputy Clements and to the prosecuting attorney indicates that Kurt gave a "full and fair disclosure" of the incident with Candace. Therefore he is entitled to the benefit of a "complete defense" to a charge of malicious prosecution. *Thomas v. Hinton*, 76 Idaho 337, 281 P.2d 1050 (1955); Robinson v. White, 90 Idaho 548, 414 P.2d 666 (1966); Rowles v. Country Kitchen, 99 Idaho 259, 580 P.2d 863, (1978); and Gowin v. Altmiller, 663 F.2d 820 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1981).

A comparison of Idaho case law confirms that the dismissal of Candace's complaint on the Motion for Summary Judgment was correct. The present case is similar to the case of Gowin v. Altmiller, 663 F.2d 820 (9th Cir. 1981). In that case the defendant in a malicious prosecution case had previously given a letter to the sheriff, complaining about the plaintiff's conduct. The prosecutor decided to file a criminal complaint for embezzlement. After a conviction the case was later reversed on appeal. The Court held that the complaining person (defendant in malicious prosecution case) was shielded from liability because the criminal charge was based on the independent decision of the prosecuting attorney. The Court stated,

"The Idaho Supreme Court has ruled that the advice of counsel is a complete defense to an action for malicious prosecution when the prosecution is instituted in reliance on such advice, given after full disclosure of the facts to the attorney. Allen v. Moyle, 84 Idaho 18, 24, 367 P.2d 579, 583 (1961.)" Id, at 823.

Since the Jefferson County Prosecutor made the independent decision to file the trespass complaint against Candace, and Kurt gave a full and fair disclosure, her claim for malicious prosecution against Kurt must fail on element number 3. In the present case Kurt was not the prosecutor, since the Jefferson County Prosecutor Robin Dunn decided to initiate the case by preparing and filing a formal Complaint and Summons.

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